

PROPOSED CHANGES TO AMS BYLAWS

Additions are indicated by ***bold italics***. Deletions by striking through (~~like this~~).

BYLAWS

BYLAW 1: INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS

2. In these Bylaws unless the context otherwise requires:

~~! Council Senators shall mean the student Senators who hold voting seats on Council~~

~~! Court shall mean the student court of the Society~~

BYLAW 2: MEMBERS OF THE SOCIETY

1. Members

The society shall consist of active members and associate members:

(a) ACTIVE MEMBERS

Active members shall be those persons who are not in default of payment of the fees of the Society, as determined in accordance with Bylaw 14, and who:

- i) are enrolled in a degree or diploma program administered by UBC Vancouver or an Affiliated Institution; or
- ii) are registered in a Credit Course; or
- iii) were registered in a Credit Course on the last day of ~~March~~ ***November*** of the current Academic Year.

2. Expulsion From the Society

A Member ceases to be a member of the Society upon:

- (a) ~~failing~~ ***failing*** to meet the requirements as set out in Bylaw 2(1); or
- (b) ~~on the ruling of the Court pursuant to Bylaw 21; or~~
- (c) upon a Resolution of the Members of the Society

BYLAW 3: ANNUAL GENERAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

2. **Notice**

- (a) Notice of annual general or special general meetings shall be given to the Members of the Society by:
 - i) ~~posting a notice of meeting~~ ***the date, time, location, and proposed agenda for the meeting*** at least ~~fourteen (14)~~ ***twenty-one (21)*** days prior to the meeting, on the Society's website ~~or other electronic notice board; and~~
 - ii) publishing in the *Ubyyssey* or other campus publication at least ~~fourteen (14) days~~ ***once in each of the three (3) weeks immediately*** prior to the annual general or special general meeting ***the date, time, location, and proposed agenda for the meeting; and.***
 - iii) ***emailing the date, time, location, and proposed agenda for the meeting to every member of the society.***

BYLAW 4: REFERENDUM

- 1. A referendum for the Society shall be called by the President upon:
 - (a) a Resolution of Council; or
 - (b) a petition duly signed by five percent (5%) of the active members ~~or one thousand (1000) active members, whichever is the lesser number~~, evidencing their Student Numbers, and delivered to the Vice-President Academic and University Affairs.
- 2. ~~The text of the referendum shall be drafted to ensure that the question is capable of being answered "yes" or "no" and if in the opinion of Council a petition for a referendum does not meet this requirement, Council shall forthwith refer the referendum to the Court to prepare a clear and unambiguous question.~~

The text of the referendum question shall be drafted to ensure that it meets the following requirements:

- (a) ***The question is capable of being answered "yes" or "no", with the negative response corresponding to the status quo.***
- (b) ***The question, including any preamble, is clear and unambiguous.***
- (c) ***The question, including any preamble, is not predicated on materially untrue statements.***
- (d) ***The actions that would be taken if the referendum is successful are not illegal.***
- (e) ***In cases where the proposed question would break a contract, the intent to break the contract must be specifically stated and the penalty for breaking the contract must be included as part of the question.***

If Council decides by resolution that a referendum does not meet one or more of these requirements, the referendum shall not be put to the membership. Such a resolution shall state the requirements which have not been met.

...

6. *Records of all successful referenda, except referenda that amend the Bylaws, shall be included in an appendix to the Bylaws until such time as they are repealed.*

BYLAW 5: STUDENT COUNCIL

2. Members

- (h) A member of Council who is a constituency representative as defined in Bylaw ~~5(2)(a)(v)~~ **5(2)(a)(iii)** shall lose their membership in Council if such member has missed five (5) regularly scheduled Council meetings during the School Year. A constituency representative shall, for the purposes of this provision, be considered absent even if they have appointed a proxy to attend in their place.
- (i) A member of Council who is the representative of the students at an Affiliated Institution as defined in Bylaw ~~5(2)(a)(iv)~~ **5(2)(a)(ii)** shall lose their membership in Council if such member has missed five (5) regularly scheduled Council meetings during the School Year. Such a representative shall, for the purposes of this provision, be considered absent even if they have appointed a proxy to attend in their place.

3. Executive

(b) ELECTION OF EXECUTIVE

- i) The President, Vice-President Academic and University Affairs, Vice-President Finance, Vice-President Administration and Vice-President External Affairs shall be elected by and from the active members of the Society in a general election which shall be held each year at some time between February 15 and March 15 inclusive. Regulations for the conduct of general elections shall be set out in the Code.

...

(c) RECALL OF EXECUTIVE MEMBERS OR VACANCY IN AN EXECUTIVE OFFICE

- i) A member of the Executive of Council may be removed from office upon:
- (1) a referendum held in accordance with Bylaw 4; or
 - (2) a Special Resolution passed at a special general meeting held in accordance with Bylaw 3.
- ii) Upon recall of an Executive member, or upon a vacancy in an office arising by other than recall, Council shall hold, not less than twenty-one (21) and not more than thirty-one (31) days from the date of recall or vacancy, a by-election to fill the vacated office. Should the by-election fall outside the School Year, Council may postpone such by-election until the earliest convenient date within the School Year, but such said date shall not exceed thirty-one (31) days after the start or resumption of the School Year.

- iii) ~~Any~~ ***Notwithstanding By-Law 5(3)(b)(i), any*** active member, ~~including~~ ***except for*** the member so recalled, may be nominated to fill the vacancy, and any member declared duly elected shall take office immediately.
- iv) During any vacancy in an office, Council shall appoint from amongst ~~its members~~ ***the active members of the Society***, a temporary replacement for that position who shall be assigned the regular duties befalling the vacant office.

BYLAW 9: THE OMBUDSPERSON

1. Powers and Duties

The Ombudsperson shall:

- (a) be responsible for investigating and reporting to Council or the appropriate member of the staff of the Society or the Executive, any reasonable complaint or question that an active member has with the Society and its organizations;
- (b) be responsible for the resolution of any such complaint referred to in Bylaw 9(1)(a) where possible;
- (c) recommend a course of action to Council or any of the Society's organizations where such action is necessitated;
- (d) ~~represent or cause to be represented any active member in approaching the University on individual matters;~~

BYLAW 13: SUBSIDIARY ORGANIZATIONS

- 9. All subsidiary organizations shall ~~on or before ten (10) days prior to April 1st~~ ***within the week prior to June 30th*** in each academic year submit to the Vice-President Finance its annual report which shall include: (1) a statement of revenues and expenditures of the present fiscal year, (2) a statement of proposed revenues and expenditures for the next fiscal year, and (3) a list of all assets and inventories currently being administered by the organization.

BYLAW 18: RECORDS

- 1. The minutes of the meetings of the Society, its subsidiary organizations, branch societies and committees and Council shall be kept at the offices of the Society, except as otherwise provided for in the Bylaws or the Code, or in policies adopted by Council. All reports, correspondence and any records of the Executive of Council, the Managing Director, the Staff, and other Members acting on behalf of the Society are the property of the Society and shall remain with the Society to be kept at the offices of the Society, except as otherwise provided for in the Bylaws or the Code, or in policies adopted by Council, all in compliance with the provision of the Societies Act regarding location of records.
- 2. Subject to any restrictions imposed under applicable privacy laws and other applicable laws, the books and records of the Society may be inspected by the Members of the Society at the offices of the Society on any school day between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. ***However,***

Council may establish a policy to keep certain records confidential where disclosure would be harmful to the financial or economic interests of the Society, the business interests of a third party, or the security of the Society's buildings or its computer or communications systems, as well as where disclosure would disrupt an ongoing investigation, violate solicitor-client privilege, or reveal in camera discussions.

BYLAW 21: STUDENT COURT

1. ~~(a) The Court shall, subject to the *University Act*, the *Societies Act*, and the Constitution and Bylaws, exercise disciplinary powers over the Society's organizations and members.~~
 - ~~(b) Notwithstanding this Bylaw, the Court shall have no authority to fetter the discretion of Council with regard to handling or disbursing the funds of the Society.~~
 - ~~(c) For greater certainty, the Court shall have jurisdiction:
 - i) over individuals:
 - ~~(1) for any alleged violation of the Society's Constitution, Bylaws or Code, and~~
 - ~~(2) for any alleged violation of any rule, resolution or regulation passed by Council or the Society, and~~
 - ~~(3) for any behaviour deemed unbecoming to a Member of the Society.~~
 - ii) over the Society's organizations:
 - ~~(1) for any alleged violation of the Society's Constitution, Bylaws or Code, and~~
 - ~~(2) for any alleged violation of any rule, resolution or regulation passed by Council or the Society, and~~
 - ~~(3) for alleged failure to maintain a proper standard of conduct at any event sponsored or organized by that organization or by the Society or any other organization, and~~
 - ~~(4) for the violation of the constitution or bylaws of any subsidiary organization of the Society.~~~~
 - ~~(d) For any violation of Bylaw 21(1)(c)(i), the Court may:
 - i) impose fines not in excess of ten dollars (\$10.00) per Member, and
 - ii) suspend that individual from all Society privileges for any period less than one School Year.~~
 - ~~(e) For any violation of Bylaw 21(1)(c)(ii), the Court may:~~

- ~~i) — subject to Bylaw 21(1)(b), order that restitution be made by payment out of the general funds of that organization of such amount as the Court shall see fit in all the circumstances, all such amounts to be applied towards remedying any loss or damage caused;~~
- ~~ii) — in extreme cases, order in addition the suspension of that organization from the Society;~~
- ~~iii) — declare that an action is void and of no effect, and that the organization must take the appropriate steps to remedy the situation.~~

~~2. — The Court shall be constituted by and shall be governed by the following provisions.~~

- ~~(a) — The Court shall consist of five (5) judges and two (2) alternate judges who are active members and are appointed by Council. Council shall also appoint a Chief Justice from the seven (7) judges.~~
- ~~(b) — The Chief Justice and at least one alternate judge shall be members of the Law Constituency.~~
- ~~(c) — The Chief Justice shall be entering or enrolled in third year Law at UBC Vancouver.~~
- ~~(d) — When appointed by the Chief Justice to sit on a particular hearing, alternate judges shall have the full rank and authority of Judges.~~
- ~~(e) — A quorum of the Court shall be five (5) judges.~~
- ~~(f) — Council shall, in the Code, determine the rules of procedure to guide the conduct of all hearings before the Court. These rules shall be consistent with the principles of natural justice which shall likewise govern the conduct of all hearings.~~
- ~~(g) — Each individual brought before the Court is entitled to be represented by an active member.~~
- ~~(h) — In any proceeding in which an organization of the Society is proceeded against:
 - ~~i) — Service upon the President or Chair of that organization of the charge or of any notice required by this Bylaw shall be deemed service upon the organization.~~
 - ~~ii) — The President and two (2) members in good standing of the organization proceeded against are to be appointed by resolution of the organization to represent the said organization in the proceedings.~~
 - ~~iii) — In addition to the representation provided by (ii) hereof, each organization of the Society proceed against shall be entitled to be represented by one additional active member.~~~~
- ~~(i) — The Court shall be the final interpreter within the Society of the meaning of the Constitution, Bylaws and Code of the Society and shall deliver a written opinion upon any portions thereof at the request of Council or any active member of the Society. The~~

~~Court shall, in the case of any ambiguity existing in the meaning of a Bylaw, interpret that Bylaw as written, and in no other way.~~

- ~~(j) — No appeal shall be taken from an acquittal by the Court.~~
 - ~~(k) — No judgment of the Court pronounced under the jurisdiction of this Bylaw shall be acted upon or become binding until that judgment has been received by a Resolution of Council.~~
 - ~~(l) — Court shall, within one (1) calendar week of Council referring a referendum to Court in accordance with Bylaw 4(2), supply Council with a suitable text for that referendum question.~~
3. ~~The Court may be summoned by Resolution of Council, or by any active member who may make an application in writing to the clerk of the Court, as provided in the rules of the procedure of the Court. It shall be a duty of Council to receive and inquire into the complaint of any Member or employee of the Society which is submitted according to the rules of procedure of the Court. Each person against whom, in the opinion of Council or its designated committee, there exists a prima facie case within the jurisdiction of the Court, shall be handed a formal charge, as provided in the Code no later than three (3) clear days before the date set for the hearing of the case.~~
4. ~~For any violation pursuant to Bylaw 21(1)(c) brought to the Court, Council shall appoint a Prosecutor who shall be an active member.~~
5. ~~A clerk of the Court shall be appointed by Council and the clerk's duties shall be:~~
- ~~(a) — To publish a notice as provided in the rules of procedure of the Court before each sitting of the Court.~~
 - ~~(b) — To prepare a room suitable for a sitting of the Court for the time, day and place specified in the notice of charge duly received by the accused in that proceeding.~~
 - ~~(c) — To take possession of and be responsible for the production of all exhibits and other materials relevant to a proceeding.~~
 - ~~(d) — To record the judgment of the Court, the course of the proceedings and in particular, the points of evidence adduced by counsel and to keep the same in a secure place.~~
 - ~~(e) — To request of each witness and each accused called to give testimony and undertaking in the terms provided in the rules of procedure of the Court.~~
 - ~~(f) — To request of each witness and each accused a statement of his or her faculty and year.~~
 - ~~(g) — To publish by notice on the Society's website or other electronic notice board and in the *Ubysey* or other campus publication the decision of the Court.~~